

## **2<sup>nd</sup> Adjourned Special Planning Meeting to consider the Chief Executive's Report on submissions made on the Draft County Development Plan of Louth County Council – 22<sup>nd</sup> April 2021**

---

Minutes of the resumed Special Meeting of Louth County Council held via MS Teams, hosted from the Chamber, Co. Hall, Dundalk on Thursday 22<sup>nd</sup> April 2021 at 5.30 p.m.

**In attendance: (P) Present in Chamber. (R ) Remote Attendance**

**Presiding:**

Councillor Dolores Minogue, Cathaoirleach (P)

**Members: As per attendance log**

Councillors: *Marianne Butler, Paula Butterly, James Byrne, Joanna Byrne, Hugh Conlon, Edel Corrigan, Tom Cunningham, Maria Doyle, Michelle Hall, Seán Kelly, Fiachra MacRaghnaill, Pearse McGeough, Andrea McKeivitt, Kevin Meenan, Declan Power, John Reilly, Liam Reilly, Tomás Sharkey, John Sheridan, Pío Smith, Jim Tenanty, Eileen Tully, Antoin Watters, Maeve Yore*

**All Councillors attended remotely**

**Apologies: As per attendance log**

Councillors: *Kevin Callan, Emma Coffey, Conor Keelan, Paddy McQuillan*

**Officials:**

**Chief Executive:** Joan Martin, Chief Executive (P)

**Directors of Service:** Frank Pentony (P), Joe McGuinness (R),

**Meetings Administrator:** Gráinne Tuomey (P)

**Senior Planner:** Joanna Kelly (P)

**Senior Executive Planner:** Turlough King (P)

**Senior Executive Planner:** Marguerite Quinn (R)

**Executive Planner:** Gerard Brennan

**Assistant Planner:** Ciara Doran (R)

**Senior Staff Officer:** Clare O'Hagan (R)

The Cathaoirleach Dolores Minogue welcomed Members back to the Special Council Meeting to consider the Chief Executive's Report on the submissions made on the Draft County Development Plan. She thanked the Chief Executive for the clarification on Tuesday evening of her recommendation of observation 4 of the OPR submission which allowed Councillors the opportunity to review and revote. The Cathaoirleach then requested the Meeting's Administrator go through the protocols for meetings and carry out a roll call.

Gráinne Tuomey, Meeting Administrator outlined the procedures for remote meeting participation, in line with the Council's adopted Standing Orders and reminded Members on their Statutory Obligations

concerning Ethical Framework, Disclosure at Meetings, Disclosure in Advance of Meetings and the Code of Conduct for Councillors.

Members were reminded of the need to have a quorum of 9 Members present at all times and an attendance roll call was held.

Joanna Kelly, Senior Planner then gave a brief on CE Recommendation 11.

### CE Recommendation 11

CE REPORT PAGE 25 - OBSERVATION NO. 4 of OPR Submission  
 SUBJECT / MOTION To accept the CE recommendation on the OPR Observation 5.  
 Insertion of additional wording into Policy Objective HOU 6

A roll call vote was held as follows:

	For	Against	Abstain	Absent
BUTLER, Marianne				x
BUTTERLY, Paula				x
BYRNE, James				x
BYRNE, Joanna				x
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh			x	
CORRIGAN, Edel	x			
CUNNINGHAM, Tom	x			
DOYLE, Maria	x			
HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean	x			
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			
McGEOUGH, Pearse	x			
McKEVITT, Andrea	x			
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin	x			
MINOGUE, Dolores	x			
POWER, Declan				x
REILLY, John	x			
REILLY, Liam				x

SHARKEY, Tomás	x			
SHERIDAN, John	x			
SMITH, Pío	x			
TENANTY, Jim	x			
TULLY, Eileen	x			
WATTERS, Antoin	x			
YORE, Maeve	x			
<b>Totals</b>		<b>18</b>	<b>1</b>	<b>10</b>

And the recommendation was agreed.

### **CE Recommendation no. 12**

CE REPORT PAGE no. 26 - Recommendation no. 7 of OPR Submission

Joanna Byrne suggested that the decision on this recommendation be rolled over until dealing with Rural Housing.

Agreement to this was proposed by Cllr. Watters and Seconded by Cllr. McKeivitt

### **CE Recommendation no. 13**

CE REPORT PAGE no. 26 - Recommendation no. 8 of OPR Submission

Senior Planner Joanna Kelly suggested that the decision on this recommendation be rolled over until dealing with Rural Housing.

Agreement to this was proposed by Cllr. McKeivitt and Seconded by Cllr. Watters

### **CE Recommendation no. 14**

CE REPORT PAGE no. 28/29 - Observation no. 6 of OPR Submission

CE Recommendation to:

Amend wording of Level 5 'Villages' to 'Rural Nodes'.

Removal of reference to multi-unit development from Section 3.17.6

Amend wording of Policy Objective HOU 42

Senior Planner Joanna Kelly clarified that this was a simple change to language and terminology.

A roll call vote was held as follows:

	<b>For</b>	<b>Against</b>	<b>Abstain</b>	<b>Absent</b>
BUTLER, Marianne	x			
BUTTERLY, Paula	x			
BYRNE, James				x
BYRNE, Joanna	x			
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh	x			
CORRIGAN, Edel	x			
CUNNINGHAM, Tom	x			
DOYLE, Maria	x			
HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean	x			
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			
McGEOUGH, Pearse	x			
McKEVITT, Andrea	x			
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin	x			
MINOGUE, Dolores	x			
POWER, Declan	x			
REILLY, John	x			
REILLY, Liam				x
SHARKEY, Tomás	x			
SHERIDAN, John	x			
SMITH, Pío	x			
TENANTY, Jim	x			
TULLY, Eileen	x			
WATTERS, Antoin	x			
YORE, Maeve	x			
<b>Totals</b>	<b>23</b>			<b>6</b>

And the recommendation was agreed.

**CE Recommendation no. 15**

To make no change to the draft plan on foot of sub by the OPR - Level 5s

A roll call vote was held as follows:

	For	Against	Abstain	Absent
BUTLER, Marianne			x	
BUTTERLY, Paula			x	
BYRNE, James				X
BYRNE, Joanna	x			
CALLAN, Kevin				X
COFFEY, Emma				X
CONLON, Hugh			x	
CORRIGAN, Edel	x			
CUNNINGHAM, Tom	x			
DOYLE, Maria			x	
HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				X
KELLY, Sean	x			
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			
McGEOUGH, Pearse	x			
McKEVITT, Andrea	x			
McQUILLAN, Paddy				X
MEENAN, Kevin	x			
MINOGUE, Dolores			x	
POWER, Declan	x			
REILLY, John	x			
REILLY, Liam	x			
SHARKEY, Tomás	x			
SHERIDAN, John	x			
SMITH, Pio	x			
TENANTY, Jim			x	
TULLY, Eileen			x	
WATTERS, Antoin	x			
YORE, Maeve	x			
Totals	17		7	5

**CE Recommendation no. 16**

CE REPORT PAGE no. 30 Recommendation no. 10 of OPR Submission

## Amend Section 13.9.43 Backland Development

Cllr McKevitt proposed that this should be deferred to Rural housing submission considerations and Cllr. Watters seconded this proposal.

Cllr Doyle suggested that the OPR require LCC to remove this provision and Cllr Cunningham suggested that this had been a matter of in depth discussion prior to adoption of the Draft Plan so it should be voted on.

Councillors were advised that the OPR may go to the Minister if we went outside National Guidelines but that it was a reserved function and Members could vote any way they wish

Cllr McKevitt agreed to withdraw her proposal and a roll call vote was held.

	<b>For</b>	<b>Against</b>	<b>Abstain</b>	<b>Absent</b>
BUTLER, Marianne	x			
BUTTERLY, Paula		x		
BYRNE, James				x
BYRNE, Joanna		x		
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh		x		
CORRIGAN, Edel		x		
CUNNINGHAM, Tom		x		
DOYLE, Maria	x			
HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean		x		
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			
McGEOUGH, Pearse		x		
McKEVITT, Andrea		x		
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin		x		
MINOGUE, Dolores		x		
POWER, Declan		x		
REILLY, John		x		
REILLY, Liam		x		
SHARKEY, Tomás		x		
SHERIDAN, John		x		

SMITH, Pio	x			
TENANTY, Jim		x		
TULLY, Eileen	x			
WATTERS, Antoin		x		
YORE, Maeve		x		
<b>Totals</b>	<b>6</b>	<b>18</b>		<b>5</b>

The recommendation was not accepted.

Councillors were advised by the Chief Executive that where a recommendation was not accepted that the Members had to give a reason for their decision. She referred to the Planning & Development Act, which provides that any rejection of the recommendations of the Planning Regulator must be reasoned and minuted.

A discussion ensued culminating in Cllr. Butler proposing wording of a response which she read out, and Cllr. McKevitt seconded this.

This was agreed to be sent to the Meeting Administrator and was submitted as follows:

“Backland development is respectful to the traditional settlement pattern, if carefully planned it can enhance the rural character and provide a sustainable model for grouping small numbers of people together.”

### **CE Recommendation no. 17**

CE REPORT PAGE no. 30 - Observation no. 7 of OPR Submission  
Amend wording of policy Objective HOU39 to reflect the wording of ‘small towns and villages

A lengthy discussion was held on this. Clarification was sought from officials on the location of the sites, if the recommendation would restrict or prevent development of smaller sites, movement within and out of zoned areas, boundary restrictions

Members were presented with a list of areas by Turlough King, Senior Executive Planner.

Members were advised that existing sites are not serviced and serviced sites cannot be provided where no services exist. Clarification was given that residents from anywhere in the county could move into level 5 zoned areas but level 5 residents could not move into open countryside.

Members were further advised that the recommendation would not have any negative impact on any other policies, and that the wording was to match descriptions within National Policy and allow the areas to apply for funding.

A roll call vote was held as follows:

	<b>For</b>	<b>Against</b>	<b>Abstain</b>	<b>Absent</b>
BUTLER, Marianne	x			
BUTTERLY, Paula	x			
BYRNE, James		x		
BYRNE, Joanna		x		
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh		x		
CORRIGAN, Edel		x		
CUNNINGHAM, Tom		x		
DOYLE, Maria	x			
HALL, Michelle			x	
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean		x		
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			
McGEOUGH, Pearse		x		
McKEVITT, Andrea		x		
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin		x		
MINOGUE, Dolores	x			
POWER, Declan	x			
REILLY, John	x			
REILLY, Liam	x			
SHARKEY, Tomás		x		
SHERIDAN, John	x			
SMITH, Pío	x			
TENANTY, Jim		x		
TULLY, Eileen	x			
WATTERS, Antoin		x		
YORE, Maeve		x		
<b>Totals</b>	<b>11</b>	<b>13</b>	<b>1</b>	<b>4</b>

**CE Recommendation no. 18**

CE REPORT PAGE no. 32 - Observation no. 8 of OPR Submission  
 Make no change to the Draft Plan on foot of submission by the OPR



Cllr Butler sought clarity on the role of regeneration officers referred to within the document and was advised by the Chief Executive that staff duties were a matter for the executive.

A roll call vote was held as follows:

	<b>For</b>	<b>Against</b>	<b>Abstain</b>	<b>Absent</b>
BUTLER, Marianne		x		
BUTTERLY, Paula			x	
BYRNE, James				x
BYRNE, Joanna	x			
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh			x	
CORRIGAN, Edel	x			
CUNNINGHAM, Tom	x			
DOYLE, Maria				x
HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean	x			
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			
McGEOUGH, Pearse	x			
McKEVITT, Andrea	x			
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin	x			
MINOGUE, Dolores	x			
POWER, Declan	x			
REILLY, John	x			
REILLY, Liam	x			
SHARKEY, Tomás	x			
SHERIDAN, John	x			
SMITH, Pío	x			
TENANTY, Jim			x	
TULLY, Eileen	x			
WATTERS, Antoin	x			
YORE, Maeve	x			
<b>Totals</b>	<b>19</b>	<b>1</b>	<b>3</b>	<b>6</b>

**CE Recommendation no. 19**

CE REPORT PAGE no. 32 - Observation no. 9 of OPR Submission

Insertion of spot objective for the mixed use zoned lands in the southern part of Dundalk that forms the Mullagharlin Framework Plan relating to retail.

It was clarified to Members that 350m2 was not large scale development and the area referred to the gross floor area which included storage and circulation space and was suitable for neighbourhood retail only and that large scale retail would not be considered for the area.

A roll call vote was held as follows:

	For	Against	Abstain	Absent
BUTLER, Marianne			x	
BUTTERLY, Paula	x			
BYRNE, James				x
BYRNE, Joanna	x			
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh	x			
CORRIGAN, Edel	x			
CUNNINGHAM, Tom	x			
DOYLE, Maria				x
HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean	x			
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			
McGEOUGH, Pearse	x			
McKEVITT, Andrea	x			
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin	x			
MINOGUE, Dolores	x			
POWER, Declan	x			
REILLY, John	x			
REILLY, Liam	x			
SHARKEY, Tomás	x			
SHERIDAN, John	x			
SMITH, Pio	x			
TENANTY, Jim	x			
TULLY, Eileen	x			
WATTERS, Antoin	x			
YORE, Maeve	x			
<b>Totals</b>	<b>22</b>		<b>1</b>	<b>6</b>

And the recommendation was agreed.

**CE Recommendation no. 20**

CE REPORT PAGE no. 33/34 - Observation 10 of the OPR Submission  
Insertion of additional text and supporting Policy Objective MOV xx into chapter 7 referring to S10(2)(n)

Cllr Butler proposed specific wording be inserted to refer to the National Climate Action Plan 2019 and any subsequent plans...

Officials advised that National Legislation that issues subsequent to the adoption of the County Development Plan must be complied with.

As there was no seconder for Cllr Butlers proposal a roll call vote was made as follows:

	<b>For</b>	<b>Against</b>	<b>Abstain</b>	<b>Absent</b>
BUTLER, Marianne	x			
BUTTERLY, Paula	x			
BYRNE, James	x			
BYRNE, Joanna	x			
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh	x			
CORRIGAN, Edel	x			
CUNNINGHAM, Tom	x			
DOYLE, Maria				x
HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean	x			
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			
McGEOUGH, Pearse	x			
McKEVITT, Andrea	x			
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin	x			
MINOGUE, Dolores	x			

POWER, Declan	x			
REILLY, John	x			
REILLY, Liam	x			
SHARKEY, Tomás	x			
SHERIDAN, John	x			
SMITH, Pio				x
TENANTY, Jim	x			
TULLY, Eileen	x			
WATTERS, Antoin	x			
YORE, Maeve	x			
<b>Totals</b>	<b>23</b>			<b>6</b>

And the recommendation was agreed.

**CE Recommendation no. 21**

Senior Planner, Joanna Kelly, recommended taking OPR Recommendation 11, Observation 11 and Observation 12 together as none of them affected policy change only changed the narrative.

Cllr McKeivitt proposed, and Cllr Minogue seconded this suggestion.

Cllr. Joanna Byrne asked for clarification on text on top of page 37 and whether this would reduce car parking, and requested that each item be voted on separately. Cllr McKeivitt withdrew her motion

A roll call vote was held on the following item as follows:

CE REPORT PAGE no. 35 - Recommendation 11 of OPR Submission  
 Insertion of additional text 7.5.1 and table 7.1 relating to current travel patterns in the county

	For	Against	Abstain	Absent
BUTLER, Marianne	x			
BUTTERLY, Paula	x			
BYRNE, James	x			
BYRNE, Joanna	x			
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh	x			
CORRIGAN, Edel	x			
CUNNINGHAM, Tom	x			
DOYLE, Maria				x

HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean				x
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			
McGEOUGH, Pearse	x			
McKEVITT, Andrea	x			
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin	x			
MINOGUE, Dolores	x			
POWER, Declan	x			
REILLY, John	x			
REILLY, Liam	x			
SHARKEY, Tomás				x
SHERIDAN, John	x			
SMITH, Pío	x			
TENANTY, Jim	x			
TULLY, Eileen	x			
WATTERS, Antoin	x			
YORE, Maeve	x			
<b>Totals</b>	<b>22</b>			<b>7</b>

And the recommendation was agreed.

### CE Recommendation no. 22

CE REPORT PAGE no. 36 - Observation 11 of OPR Submission  
 Insertion of additional text into Section 7.5 to include Transport Demand Management  
 Insertion of additional text into Section 13.14.12 relating to Car Parking Standards

Joanna Kelly stated that before voting she wanted to be sure Members know what is in the Plan, National Policy is very clear on seeking car park reductions at a national level and targeting more sustainable transport such as public bus, cycling and walking.

A roll call vote was held as follows:

	For	Against	Abstain	Absent
BUTLER, Marianne	x			
BUTTERLY, Paula	x			
BYRNE, James		x		

BYRNE, Joanna		x		
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh		x		
CORRIGAN, Edel		x		
CUNNINGHAM, Tom		x		
DOYLE, Maria				x
HALL, Michelle		x		
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean				x
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra		x		
McGEOUGH, Pearse		x		
McKEVITT, Andrea		x		
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin		x		
MINOGUE, Dolores		x		
POWER, Declan		x		
REILLY, John		x		
REILLY, Liam		x		
SHARKEY, Tomás		x		
SHERIDAN, John		x		
SMITH, Pío		x		
TENANTY, Jim		x		
TULLY, Eileen		x		
WATTERS, Antoin		x		
YORE, Maeve	x			
<b>Totals</b>		<b>3</b>	<b>20</b>	<b>6</b>

And the recommendation was rejected.

### CE Recommendation no. 23

CE REPORT PAGE 37/38 - OBSERVATION NO. 12 of OPR Submission

To accept the CE recommendation

Insertion of additional text into paragraph 2 of Section 13.14.17; and

Insertion of additional text and footnote into final paragraph of Section 13.14.17 to provide clarity with regard to DMURS

A roll call vote was held as follows:

	<b>For</b>	<b>Against</b>	<b>Abstain</b>	<b>Absent</b>
BUTLER, Marianne	x			
BUTTERLY, Paula	x			
BYRNE, James	x			
BYRNE, Joanna	x			
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh	x			
CORRIGAN, Edel	x			
CUNNINGHAM, Tom	x			
DOYLE, Maria				x
HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean				x
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			
McGEOUGH, Pearse	x			
McKEVITT, Andrea	x			
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin	x			
MINOGUE, Dolores	x			
POWER, Declan	x			
REILLY, John	x			
REILLY, Liam	x			
SHARKEY, Tomás	x			
SHERIDAN, John	x			
SMITH, Pío	x			
TENANTY, Jim	x			
TULLY, Eileen	x			
WATTERS, Antoin	x			
YORE, Maeve	x			
<b>Totals</b>	<b>23</b>			<b>6</b>

And the recommendation was agreed.

**CE Recommendation no. 24**

CE REPORT PAGE 38 - RECOMMENDATION NO. 12 of OPR Submission  
SUBJECT / MOTION To accept the CE recommendation

To make no change to the Draft Plan, on foot of submission by the OPR, in relation to Recommendation 12 in relation to Spatial Planning and National Roads Guidelines for Planning Authorities (2012).

A roll call vote was held as follows:

	<b>For</b>	<b>Against</b>	<b>Abstain</b>	<b>Absent</b>
BUTLER, Marianne		x		
BUTTERLY, Paula			x	
BYRNE, James			x	
BYRNE, Joanna	x			
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh	x			
CORRIGAN, Edel	x			
CUNNINGHAM, Tom	x			
DOYLE, Maria				x
HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean				x
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			
McGEOUGH, Pearse	x			
McKEVITT, Andrea	x			
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin	x			
MINOGUE, Dolores	x			
POWER, Declan	x			
REILLY, John	x			
REILLY, Liam	x			
SHARKEY, Tomás	x			
SHERIDAN, John	x			
SMITH, Pio	x			
TENANTY, Jim	x			
TULLY, Eileen	x			
WATTERS, Antoin	x			
YORE, Maeve	x			
<b>Totals</b>	<b>20</b>	<b>1</b>	<b>2</b>	<b>6</b>

And the recommendation was agreed.



**CE Recommendation no. 25**

CE REPORT PAGE 38 - RECOMMENDATION NO. 13 of OPR Submission

Cllr. Joanna Byrne proposed that this be rolled over to the OPW submissions, Cllr. Yore seconded this.

**CE Recommendation no. 26**

CE REPORT PAGE 39-46 - RECOMMENDATION NO. 12 of OPR Submission

SUBJECT / MOTION To accept the CE recommendation

Insertion of additional text into Policy Objective IU47

Insertion of new Narrative in Section 10.8.2 and associated Policy Objectives regarding the utilisation of heat mapping

Insertion of additional text in Section 10.5 and 10.6 relating to Energy, Renewable Energy and Wind Energy

For clarification Members were advised that LCC awaits publication on the National Wind Energy Guidelines.

A roll call vote was held as follows:

	<b>For</b>	<b>Against</b>	<b>Abstain</b>	<b>Absent</b>
BUTLER, Marianne	x			
BUTTERLY, Paula	x			
BYRNE, James	x			
BYRNE, Joanna	x			
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh	x			
CORRIGAN, Edel	x			
CUNNINGHAM, Tom	x			
DOYLE, Maria				x
HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean				x
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			
McGEOUGH, Pearse	x			
McKEVITT, Andrea	x			
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin	x			

MINOGUE, Dolores	x			
POWER, Declan	x			
REILLY, John	x			
REILLY, Liam	x			
SHARKEY, Tomás	x			
SHERIDAN, John	x			
SMITH, Pio	x			
TENANTY, Jim	x			
TULLY, Eileen	x			
WATTERS, Antoin	x			
YORE, Maeve	x			
<b>Totals</b>	<b>23</b>			<b>6</b>

And the recommendation was agreed.

### CE Recommendation no. 27

CE REPORT PAGE 41 - OBSERVATION NO. 13 of OPR Submission  
SUBJECT / MOTION To accept the CE recommendation  
To make no change to the Draft Plan, on foot of submission by the OPR, in relation to Observation 13 regarding appropriate details and maps of the intended routes for proposed greenways.

A roll call vote was held as follows:

	For	Against	Abstain	Absent
BUTLER, Marianne	x			
BUTTERLY, Paula	x			
BYRNE, James	x			
BYRNE, Joanna	x			
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh	x			
CORRIGAN, Edel	x			
CUNNINGHAM, Tom	x			
DOYLE, Maria				x
HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean				x
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			
McGEOUGH, Pearse	x			

McKEVITT, Andrea	x			
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin	x			
MINOGUE, Dolores	x			
POWER, Declan	x			
REILLY, John	x			
REILLY, Liam	x			
SHARKEY, Tomás	x			
SHERIDAN, John	x			
SMITH, Pío	x			
TENANTY, Jim	x			
TULLY, Eileen	x			
WATTERS, Antoin	x			
YORE, Maeve	x			
<b>Totals</b>	<b>23</b>			<b>6</b>

And the recommendation was agreed.

## EMRA

### CE Recommendation no. 28

CE REPORT PAGE 47 - Item No. 1 of EMRA Submission  
SUBJECT / MOTION To accept the CE recommendation  
Insertion of Figure 2.4 of the RSES into Chapter 1, Section 1.9, in relation to Item 1 of EMRA  
Submission regarding the 16 specific RSO's

A roll call vote was held as follows:

	For	Against	Abstain	Absent
BUTLER, Marianne	x			
BUTTERLY, Paula	x			
BYRNE, James	x			
BYRNE, Joanna	x			
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh	x			
CORRIGAN, Edel	x			
CUNNINGHAM, Tom	x			

DOYLE, Maria				x
HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean				x
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			
McGEOUGH, Pearse	x			
McKEVITT, Andrea	x			
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin	x			
MINOGUE, Dolores	x			
POWER, Declan	x			
REILLY, John	x			
REILLY, Liam	x			
SHARKEY, Tomás	x			
SHERIDAN, John	x			
SMITH, Pío	x			
TENANTY, Jim	x			
TULLY, Eileen	x			
WATTERS, Antoin	x			
YORE, Maeve	x			
<b>Totals</b>	<b>23</b>			<b>6</b>

And the recommendation was agreed.

### CE Recommendation no. 29

CE REPORT PAGE 47 - Item No. 2 of EMRA Submission  
SUBJECT / MOTION To accept the CE recommendation  
Insertion of additional text (2.5.3) and table (2.9) into Section 2.5.3 in relation to Item 2 of EMRA  
Submission regarding the annualised average projected population

A roll call vote was held as follows:

	For	Against	Abstain	Absent
BUTLER, Marianne	x			
BUTTERLY, Paula	x			
BYRNE, James	x			
BYRNE, Joanna	x			
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh	x			

CORRIGAN, Edel	x			
CUNNINGHAM, Tom	x			
DOYLE, Maria				x
HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean				x
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			
McGEOUGH, Pearse	x			
McKEVITT, Andrea	x			
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin	x			
MINOGUE, Dolores	x			
POWER, Declan	x			
REILLY, John	x			
REILLY, Liam	x			
SHARKEY, Tomás	x			
SHERIDAN, John	x			
SMITH, Pio	x			
TENANTY, Jim	x			
TULLY, Eileen	x			
WATTERS, Antoin	x			
YORE, Maeve	x			
<b>Totals</b>	<b>23</b>			<b>6</b>

And the recommendation was agreed.

### CE Recommendation no. 30

CE REPORT PAGE 50 - Item No. 3 of EMRA Submission  
SUBJECT / MOTION To accept the CE recommendation

Members were advised that this recommendation was no longer applicable as when the plan was written Ardee population growth was being reduced to 29%, and the surplus be reallocated. As this recommendation was now rejected by members, it was proposed to Members that the last paragraph of the response on page 50 be omitted and the CE Recommendation amended to No Change.

Cllr John Sheridan proposed to omit the last paragraph of CE response on page 50 and accept the changed recommendation of Chief Executive to No Change. This was seconded by Cllr Jim Tenanty.

A roll call vote was held as follows:

	<b>For</b>	<b>Against</b>	<b>Abstain</b>	<b>Absent</b>
BUTLER, Marianne		x		
BUTTERLY, Paula	x			
BYRNE, James	x			
BYRNE, Joanna	x			
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh	x			
CORRIGAN, Edel	x			
CUNNINGHAM, Tom	x			
DOYLE, Maria				x
HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean				x
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			
McGEOUGH, Pearse	x			
McKEVITT, Andrea	x			
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin	x			
MINOGUE, Dolores	x			
POWER, Declan	x			
REILLY, John	x			
REILLY, Liam	x			
SHARKEY, Tomás	x			
SHERIDAN, John	x			
SMITH, Pio	x			
TENANTY, Jim	x			
TULLY, Eileen	x			
WATTERS, Antoin	x			
YORE, Maeve	x			
<b>Totals</b>	<b>22</b>	<b>1</b>		<b>6</b>

And the recommendation was agreed.

### **CE Recommendation no. 31**

CE REPORT PAGE 50 - Item No. 4 of EMRA Submission  
SUBJECT / MOTION To accept the CE recommendation

This was already voted for and rejected.

### CE Recommendation no. 32

CE REPORT PAGE 52 - Item No. 5 of EMRA Submission  
SUBJECT / MOTION To accept the CE recommendation  
Amendment and Insertion of additional text into Section 2.4.3 'Guiding Principles for Core Strategy' in  
relation to Item 5 of EMRA Submission

Members received clarification that strategic reserve is not zoned lands.

A roll call vote was held as follows:

	For	Against	Abstain	Absent
BUTLER, Marianne	x			
BUTTERLY, Paula	x			
BYRNE, James			x	
BYRNE, Joanna	x			
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh				
CORRIGAN, Edel	x			
CUNNINGHAM, Tom	x			
DOYLE, Maria				
HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean				x
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			
McGEOUGH, Pearse	x			
McKEVITT, Andrea		x		
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin	x			
MINOGUE, Dolores		x		
POWER, Declan	x			
REILLY, John		x		
REILLY, Liam		x		
SHARKEY, Tomás	x			
SHERIDAN, John			x	
SMITH, Pio	x			
TENANTY, Jim		x		
TULLY, Eileen			x	

WATTERS, Antoin	x			
YORE, Maeve		x		
<b>Totals</b>	<b>13</b>	<b>6</b>	<b>4</b>	<b>6</b>

And the recommendation was agreed.

### CE Recommendation no. 33

CE REPORT PAGE 52 - Item No. 6 of EMRA Submission  
SUBJECT / MOTION To accept the CE recommendation  
Correction of figures regarding the percentage of total population growth to be allocated

A roll call vote was held as follows:

	For	Against	Abstain	Absent
BUTLER, Marianne	x			
BUTTERLY, Paula	x			
BYRNE, James				x
BYRNE, Joanna	x			
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh	x			
CORRIGAN, Edel	x			
CUNNINGHAM, Tom	x			
DOYLE, Maria				x
HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean				x
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			
McGEOUGH, Pearse	x			
McKEVITT, Andrea	x			
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin	x			
MINOGUE, Dolores	x			
POWER, Declan	x			
REILLY, John	x			
REILLY, Liam	x			
SHARKEY, Tomás	x			
SHERIDAN, John	x			
SMITH, Pío	x			
TENANTY, Jim	x			



TULLY, Eileen	x			
WATTERS, Antoin	x			
YORE, Maeve	x			
<b>Totals</b>	<b>22</b>			<b>7</b>

And the recommendation was agreed.

### CE Recommendation no. 34

CE REPORT PAGE 53 - Item No. 7 of EMRA Submission  
SUBJECT / MOTION To accept the CE recommendation  
To update title in Colum K, Table 2.15. Potential Units to be delivered on infill/brownfield lands.

A roll call vote was held as follows:

	For	Against	Abstain	Absent
BUTLER, Marianne	x			
BUTTERLY, Paula				x
BYRNE, James				x
BYRNE, Joanna	x			
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh	x			
CORRIGAN, Edel	x			
CUNNINGHAM, Tom	x			
DOYLE, Maria				x
HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean				x
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			
McGEOUGH, Pearse	x			
McKEVITT, Andrea	x			
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin	x			
MINOGUE, Dolores	x			
POWER, Declan	x			
REILLY, John	x			
REILLY, Liam	x			
SHARKEY, Tomás				x
SHERIDAN, John	x			
SMITH, Pio	x			

TENANTY, Jim				x
TULLY, Eileen	x			
WATTERS, Antoin	x			
YORE, Maeve	x			
<b>Totals</b>	<b>19</b>			<b>10</b>

And the recommendation was agreed.

**CE Recommendation no. 35**

CE REPORT PAGE 53 - Item No. 8 of EMRA Submission  
SUBJECT / MOTION To accept the CE recommendation  
As per CE recommendation 5, Recommendation 4 of OPR Submission

Already dealt with as Recommendation No 4 of the OPR submission.

**CE Recommendation no. 36**

CE REPORT PAGE 56 - Item No. 9 of EMRA Submission  
SUBJECT / MOTION To accept the CE recommendation  
Insertion of additional text into Section 2.7 in relation to Item 9 of EMRA Submission regarding the Joint LAP for Drogheda and the LAP for Dundalk

A roll call vote was held as follows:

	For	Against	Abstain	Absent
BUTLER, Marianne	x			
BUTTERLY, Paula				x
BYRNE, James				x
BYRNE, Joanna	x			
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh			x	
CORRIGAN, Edel	x			
CUNNINGHAM, Tom	x			
DOYLE, Maria				x
HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean				x
MacRAGHNAILL, Fiachra	x			

McGEOUGH, Pearse	x			
McKEVITT, Andrea	x			
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin	x			
MINOGUE, Dolores	x			
POWER, Declan	x			
REILLY, John	x			
REILLY, Liam	x			
SHARKEY, Tomás	x			
SHERIDAN, John	x			
SMITH, Pio	x			
TENANTY, Jim				x
TULLY, Eileen	x			
WATTERS, Antoin	x			
YORE, Maeve	x			
<b>Totals</b>	<b>19</b>		<b>1</b>	<b>9</b>

And the recommendation was agreed.

### CE Recommendation no. 37

CE REPORT PAGE 56 - Item No. 10 of EMRA Submission

SUBJECT / MOTION To accept the CE recommendation

To make no change to the Draft Plan, on foot of submission by EMRA in relation to Item 10 regarding UAP terminology

A roll call vote was held as follows:

	For	Against	Abstain	Absent
BUTLER, Marianne	x			
BUTTERLY, Paula				x
BYRNE, James				x
BYRNE, Joanna	x			
CALLAN, Kevin				x
COFFEY, Emma				x
CONLON, Hugh	x			
CORRIGAN, Edel	x			
CUNNINGHAM, Tom	x			
DOYLE, Maria				x
HALL, Michelle	x			
KEELAN, Conor				x
KELLY, Sean				x
MacRAGHNAILL, Fíachra	x			

McGEOUGH, Pearse	x			
McKEVITT, Andrea	x			
McQUILLAN, Paddy				x
MEENAN, Kevin	x			
MINOGUE, Dolores	x			
POWER, Declan	x			
REILLY, John	x			
REILLY, Liam	x			
SHARKEY, Tomás	x			
SHERIDAN, John	xx			
SMITH, Pio	x			
TENANTY, Jim				x
TULLY, Eileen	x			
WATTERS, Antoin	x			
YORE, Maeve	x			
<b>Totals</b>	<b>20</b>			<b>9</b>

And the recommendation was approved.

Members were advised that based on the responses to the Doodle poll the next meetings would be held on Monday and Wednesday next week, 26<sup>th</sup> and 28<sup>th</sup> April.

Meeting was adjourned.